China Dongsheng International, Inc. Form 10QSB November 19, 2007

UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-QSB

(Mark One)

X Quarterly Report Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

For the quarter ended September 30, 2007

o Transition Report Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

Commission File Number: 000-30790

CHINA DONGSHENG INTERNATIONAL, INC.

(Exact name of small business issuer as specified in its charter)

Delaware

22-3137907

(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization)

(IRS Employee Identification No.)

Jilin Dongsheng Weiye Science and Technology Development Co., Ltd., Jifeng East Road, Gaoxin District
Jilin, Jilin Province, PRC

(Address of principal executive offices)

86-432-4566702

(Issuer's telephone number)

c/o American Union Securities 100 Wall Street 15th Floor New York, NY 10005

(Address of principal agent offices)

(212) 232-0120

(Agent's telephone number)

PAPERCLIP SOFTWARE, INC.

Edgar Filing: China Dongsheng International, Inc. - Form 10QSB

(Former name, former address and former fiscal year, if changed since last report)

Check whether the issuer (1) filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act during the past 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.

Yes x No o

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).

Yes o No x

The number of shares outstanding of each of the issuer's classes of common equity, as of November 19, 2007 is 31,546,134.

CHINA DONGSHENG INTERNATIONAL, INC. FORM 10-QSB

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PART I - FINANCIAL INFORMATION

| Item 1. Financial Statements | F-1 |
|---|-----|
| | |
| Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis or Plan of Operation | 2 |
| | |
| Item 3. Controls and Procedures | 4 |
| | |
| PART II - OTHER INFORMATION | |
| | |
| Item 1. Legal Proceedings | 5 |
| | |
| Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds | 5 |
| | |
| Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities | 5 |
| | |
| Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders | 5 |
| | |
| Item 5. Other Information | 5 |
| | |
| Item 6. Exhibits | 5 |
| | |
| SIGNATURES | 6 |

Except as otherwise required by the context, all references in this report to "we", "us", "our", "CDSGChina Dongsheng" or "Company" refer to the consolidated operations of China Dongsheng International, Inc., a Delaware corporation, and its wholly owned subsidiaries.

PART I - FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Financial Statements.

CHINA DONGSHENG INTERNATIONAL, INC.

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2007 AND 2006 (UNAUDITED)

CHINA DONGSHENG INTERNATIONAL, INC. INDEX TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS SEPTEMBER 30, 2007 AND 2006 (UNAUDITED)

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page(s)

| Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet as of September 30, 2007 (Inputited) | F-3 |
|---|-------|
| 2007 (Unaudited) | |
| | |
| | |
| Condensed Consolidated Statements of Income for Three | F-4 |
| Months Ended September 30, 2007 and 2006 (Unaudited) | |
| World's Ended September 30, 2007 and 2000 (Chaudited) | |
| | |
| Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the | F-5 |
| Three Months Ended September 30, 2007 and 2006 | |
| (Unaudited) | |
| (Ollaudited) | |
| | |
| | |
| Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements | F-6 - |
| (Unaudited) | F-11 |
| (Ollaudica) | 1-11 |
| | |

CHINA DONGSHENG INTERNATIONAL, INC. CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

| ASSETS | September 30, 2007 Unaudited |
|---|------------------------------|
| Current assets: | Chadaitea |
| Cash and cash equivalents | \$ 462,024 |
| Accounts receivable - net of allowance for doubtful accounts of \$40,000 | 127,589 |
| Inventory | 91,471 |
| Prepaid expenses Prepaid expenses | 57,901 |
| Advances to suppliers | 398,346 |
| Other receivable | 164,868 |
| Total Current Assets | 1,302,199 |
| | |
| Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation of \$373,029 | 41,375,532 |
| | |
| Other assets: | |
| Deposit on land | 2,802,691 |
| Land use right | 2,732,935 |
| Total Other Assets | 5,535,626 |
| | |
| Total Assets | \$48,213,357 |
| | |
| LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY | |
| Current liabilities: | |
| Accounts payable | \$ 724,197 |
| Unearned revenue | 440,683 |
| Taxes payable | 2,742,495 |
| Accrued expenses and other payables | 346,711 |
| Total Current Liabilities | 4,254,086 |
| | |
| Notes payable - related party | 25,000 |
| | |
| Total Liabilities | 4,279,086 |
| | |
| Stockholders' Equity | |
| Common stock, \$0.001 par value, 100,000,000 shares authorized; 31,546,134 shares | |
| issued and outstanding at September 30, 2007 | 31,546 |
| Additional paid in capital | 1,209,847 |
| Accumulated other comprehensive income | 1,366,648 |
| Retained earnings - Appropriated | 1,218,086 |
| Retained earnings -Unappropriated | 40,108,144 |
| Total Stockholders' Equity | 43,934,271 |
| | |
| Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity | \$48,213,357 |

Edgar Filing: China Dongsheng International, Inc. - Form 10QSB

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the condensed consolidated statements.

CHINA DONGSHENG INTERNATIONAL, INC. CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME For the three months ended September 30, 2007 and 2006

Three-Month Ended

| | | September 30, 2007 Unaudited) | | eptember 30, 2006 Jnaudited) |
|--|----|--|----|---------------------------------------|
| Sales | \$ | 8,384,011 | \$ | 7,889,229 |
| Cost of Sales | | 2,951,505 | | 3,245,535 |
| Gross Profit | | 5,432,506 | | 4,643,694 |
| Operating Expenses | | | | |
| Selling, general and administrative | | 536,246 | | 77,066 |
| Operating income | | 4,896,260 | | 4,566,628 |
| Other Income and Expenses | | | | |
| Interest income | | 2,854 | | 6 |
| Other income | | - | | 76,801 |
| Other expense | | (1,310) | | (6,575) |
| Total Other Income | | 1,544 | | 70,232 |
| Income Before Income Taxes | | 4,897,804 | | 4,636,860 |
| (Benefit) provision for Income Taxes | | | | |
| Income tax benefit | (| (19,392,018) | | 1,526,167 |
| Provision for income taxes | | 1,646,006 | | - |
| Total (benefit) provision for income taxes | (| (17,746,012) | | 1,526,167 |
| Net Income | \$ | 22,643,816 | \$ | 3,110,693 |
| Basic and Diluted Income Per Common Share | | | | |
| Basic | \$ | 0.72 | \$ | 0.38 |
| Diluted | \$ | 0.72 | \$ | 0.26 |
| Weighted Average Number Common Shares Oustanding | | | | |
| | | | | |

Edgar Filing: China Dongsheng International, Inc. - Form 10QSB

| Basic | 31,546,134 | 8,196,521 |
|---------|------------|------------|
| | | |
| Diluted | 31,546,134 | 11,846,064 |

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the condensed consolidated statements.

CHINA DONGSHENG INTERNATIONAL, INC. CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS For the three months ended September 30, 2007 and 2006

| | 2007 (Unaudited) | 2006 (Unaudited) |
|--|---------------------|---------------------|
| Cash Flows From Operating Activities: | | |
| Net income | \$ 22,643,816 | \$ 3,110,693 |
| Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash | | |
| provided by operating activities: | | |
| Depreciation and amortization | 78,214 | 38,441 |
| Income tax benefit | (19,392,018) | - |
| | | |
| Changes in operating assets and liabilities: | | |
| Accounts receivable | (213,001) | (36,752) |
| Inventory | (17,083) | (29,961) |
| Advances to suppliers | 222,162 | (2,945,341) |
| Prepaid expenses | (401) | - |
| Accounts payable | 41,974 | - |
| Unearned revenue | (52,983) | 1,027 |
| Taxes payable | 3,208,971 | 3,018,827 |
| Accrued expenses and other payables | 51,351 | (118,439) |
| | | |
| Cash provided by operating activities | 6,571,003 | 3,038,495 |
| | | |
| Cash Flows From Investing Activities: | | |
| Purchase of land use right | - | (2,628,294) |
| Purchase of property and equipment | (587,412) | - |
| Additions to construction in process | (6,387,615) | (434,122) |
| | | |
| Cash used in investing activities | (6,975,027) | (3,062,416) |
| | | |
| Cash Flows From Financing Activities: | | |
| Payment of notes payable | (63,145) | - |
| | | |
| Cash used in financing activities | (63,145) | - |
| ŭ | | |
| | | |
| Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents | 344,068 | 51,061 |
| | | |
| Increase (Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents | (123,102) | 27,140 |
| • | | |
| Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of period | 585,126 | 30,801 |
| | | |
| Cash and Cash Equivalents - Ending of period | \$ 462,024 | \$ 57,941 |
| | | |
| Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information: | | |

Edgar Filing: China Dongsheng International, Inc. - Form 10QSB

| Interest paid | \$ - \$ | - |
|-------------------|------------|---|
| | | |
| Income Taxes paid | \$ - \$ | - |

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the condensed consolidated statements.

NOTE 1. ORGANIZATION AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION

China Dongsheng International, Inc. ("the Company" or "CDSG") was incorporated under the laws of the State of Delaware in October, 1991 and formerly known as Paperclip Software, Inc.

On November 9, 2006, the Company acquired 100% of the issued and outstanding capital stock of American Sunrise international, Inc. ("ASI"), a Delaware corporation, thereby making ASI a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, in consideration for a cash payment of \$280,000 and in exchange for the issuance of (i) 18,153,934 shares of the Company's common stock and (ii) 1,762,472 shares of the Company's newly-designated Series B Convertible Preferred Stock, of which series each share can be convert into 500 shares of the Company's common stock. After giving effect to the transactions contemplated by the Share Exchange Agreement (the "Transaction"), the ASI Shareholders and the former shareholders of the Company own 98.7% and 1.3%, respectively, of the Company's common stock on a fully-diluted basis, thereby resulting in a substantial dilution to the Company's shareholders of record as of November 6, 2006 (the "Historic PaperClip Shareholders") and constituting a change in control of the Company.

For accounting purposes, the transaction described above has been accounted for as a reverse acquisition under the purchase method of accounting. Accordingly, ASI is treated as the continuing entity for accounting purposes

The Company operates its business primarily through its wholly-owned subsidiary, Jilin Dongsheng Weiye Science and Technology Co., Ltd. ("Dongsheng"), which is engaged in the manufacturing and distributing of nutritional supplements, beauty care products and other alternative health care products.

The accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles for interim financial information and with the instructions to Item 310 of Regulation S-B. Accordingly, they do not include all of the information and footnotes required by generally accepted accounting principles for complete financial statements, In the opinion of management, all adjustments (consisting of normal recurring accruals) considered necessary for a fair presentation have been included. Operating results for the three months ended September 30, 2007 are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for the full year.

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

MANAGEMENT ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principals requires management to make estimates and assumptions that effect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION

The accompanying consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries, American Sunrise International, Inc., Jilin Dongsheng Weiye Science and Technology Co., Ltd. Inter-company transactions and balances have been eliminated in consolidation and combination.

ADVANCES TO SUPPLIERS

The Company makes advances to certain vendors' inventory purchases and purchase of construction equipments. The total advances to suppliers were \$398,346 as of September 30, 2007.

UNEARNED REVENUE

Unearned revenue represents payments received from customers for goods and services that have not been delivered or performed.

CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK

After merging with ASI, the principle operations of the Company are now located in the People's Republic of China ("PRC"). Accordingly, the Company's business, financial condition, and results of operations may be influenced by the political, economic, and legal environments in the PRC, in addition to the general state of the PRC economy. The Company's operations in the PRC are subject to special considerations and significant risks not typically associated with companies in North America and Western Europe. These include risks associated with, among others, the political, economic and legal environments legal environments and foreign currency exchange.

The Company's results may be adversely affected by changes in the political and social conditions in the PRC, and by changes in governmental policies with respect to laws and regulations, anti-inflationary measures, currency conversion and remittance abroad, and rates and methods of taxation, among other things.

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

The functional currency for the Company's operations in China is the Renminbi ("RMB"). Foreign currency transactions are translated at the applicable rates of exchange in effect at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are translated at the applicable rates of exchange in effect at that date. Revenues and expenses are translated at the average exchange rates in effect during the reporting period.

Translation adjustments arising from the use of different exchange rates from period to period are included as a component of stockholders' equity as "Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income". Gains and losses resulting from foreign currency translations are included in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income.

NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157 "Fair Value Measurements," which provides a definition of fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value and requires expanded disclosures about fair value measurements. SFAS No. 157 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007 and interim periods within those fiscal years. The provisions of SFAS No. 157 should be applied prospectively. The Company is currently analyzing whether this new standard will have impact on its financial position and results of operations.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 158 "Employers' Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans", which amends SFAS No. 87 "Employers' Accounting for Pensions" (SFAS No. 87), SFAS No. 88 "Employers' Accounting for Settlements and Curtailments of Defined Benefit Pension Plans and for Termination Benefits" (SFAS No. 88), SFAS No. 106 "Employers' Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions" (SFAS No. 106), and SFAS No. 132R "Employers' Disclosures about Pensions and Other Postretirement Benefits (revised 2003)" (SFAS No. 132R). This Statement requires companies to recognize an asset or liability for the overfunded or underfunded status of their benefit plans in their financial statements. SFAS No. 158 also requires the measurement date for plan assets and liabilities to coincide with the sponsor's year end. The standard provides two transition alternatives related to the change in measurement date provisions. The recognition of an asset and liability related to the funded status provision is effective for fiscal year ending after December 15, 2006 and the change in measurement date provisions is effective for fiscal years ending after December 15, 2008 The implementation of this standard did not have a material impact on the Company's financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, "The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities — Including an Amendment of FASB Statement No. 115," which is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. This statement permits an entity to choose to measure many financial instruments and certain other items at fair value at specified election dates. Subsequent unrealized gains and losses on items for which the fair value option has been elected will be reported in earnings. We are currently evaluating the potential impact of this statement.

NOTE 3. INVENTORY

Inventory is valued at the lower of cost or market. Cost is determined on a first-in, first-out basis and includes all expenditures incurred in bringing the goods to the point of sale and putting them in a sellable condition. At September 30, 2007, the Company's inventory consists of the finished goods only.

NOTE 4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, NET

| Machinery and Equipment | \$ 998,270 |
|-----------------------------------|--------------|
| Vehicle | 3,897 |
| Building and Plant | 4,346,569 |
| Subtotal | 5,348,736 |
| Less: Accumulated Depreciation | (373,029) |
| Construction in progress | 36,399,825 |
| | |
| Total property and equipment, net | \$41,375,532 |

Depreciation expense for the three months ended September 30, 2007 and 2006 was \$59,870 and \$38,441, respectively.

Construction in progress represents direct costs of construction or acquisition and design fees incurred for the Company's new operating site and equipments. Capitalization of these costs ceases and the construction in progress is transferred to plant and equipment when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the assets for their intended use are completed. No depreciation is provided until it is completed and ready for its intended use.

NOTE 6. LAND USE RIGHT

The Company's operating subsidiary, Dongsheng, purchased the right to use land from the local government for the period of 30 years to build a new research facility. The land use right is stated at cost less accumulated amortization. Amortization is provided using the straight-line method over 30 years. The amortization expense was \$18,344 and \$ - 0 - for the three months ended September 30, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

NOTE 7. DEPOSIT ON LAND

In June 2005, the Company's operating subsidiary also signed an agreement with the Land Committee of Jilin City Hi-Tech Zone to purchase the land use right for a planned new manufacturing site.

As of September 30, 2007, the Company has not received the official Certificate of Approval for the land use right from the local government. The total payment of RMB 21,000,000 made on purchase of land use right was recorded as deposit on land and no amortization on land use right will be booked until the official approval is received. On October 11, 2007, the Company received the official Certificate and the entire amount will be reclassified to Land Use Right in the next quarter.

NOTE 8. TAXES PAYABLE

The Company's operating subsidiary, Dongsheng, is located in China and governed by the Income Tax Law of China concerning the private-run enterprises, which are normally subject to income tax at a statutory rate of 33% (30% state income tax plus 3% local income tax) on its taxable income. Dongsheng has been accruing the income tax payable since the first year it had profits.

In 2006, Dongsheng changed its status from the private-run enterprise to foreign-invested enterprise following the acquisition by ASI. In accordance with Chinese laws, the subsidiary is eligible for the income tax holiday typically granted to foreign-invested enterprises. The subsidiary applied for the income tax exemption from Chinese tax authority and has received the approval for tax clearance. In the approval notice, it stated that all of the taxes accrued prior to September 23, 2007 in the amount of \$19,392,018 have been cleared and forgiven. The amount has been included in the Statements of Income for the three months ended September 30, 2007 as income tax benefit.

NOTE 8. TAXES PAYABLE (Continued)

On March 16, 2007, the National People's Congress of China approved the Corporate Income Tax Law of the People's Republic of China (the "New CIT Law"), which is effective from January 1, 2008. Under the new CIT law, the corporate income tax rate applicable to all Companies, including both domestic companies or foreign-invested companies, will be 25%, replacing the current applicable tax rate of 33%.

In light of the recent changes in the Corporate Income Tax Law, the local tax authority has called off new approvals on all new applications for the old two-year tax exemption and three-year 50% tax reduction for all new foreign-invested enterprises. Therefore, Dongsheng will still be liable for the income taxes on any net income generated in the third and fourth quarter of 2007 at the current tax rate of 33% until the new rate of 25% applies in 2008.

The total taxes payable of \$2,742,495 accrued in the Company's book as of September 30, 2007 includes \$1,623,811 in income taxes for the current period, \$1,044,384 in value-added taxes for the Company's operating subsidiary, Dongsheng, and \$74,300 accrued income taxes for the parent company, Paperclip Software, Inc.

NOTE 9. STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

On November 9, 2006, in accordance with the Share Exchange Agreement with ASI, the Company issued 18,153,934 shares of its common stock and 1,762,472 shares of its newly-designated Series B Convertible Preferred Stock, of which series each share will convert into 500 shares of the Company's common stock (upon the increase of the Company's authorized common stock to an appropriate amount to satisfy full conversion of all Series B Convertible Preferred Stock shares).

On February 25, 2007, the Company effectuated a 1-for-37 reverse stock split on all of its issued and outstanding shares of common stock and preferred stock. Simultaneously, all preferred stock was converted into common stock at the designated ratio.

As of September 30, 2007, there were 31,546,134 shares of Common Stock issued and outstanding and no preferred stock.

NOTE 10. NOTES PAYABLE - RELATED PARTY

At September 30, 2007, the Company has a balance of \$25,00 notes payable to its former Chief Executive Officer, Mr. William Weiss. It represents the deferred compensation payments for his services to the Company prior to the reverse merger.

Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis or Plan of Operation.

THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION SHOULD BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND NOTES THERETO APPEARING ELSEWHERE IN THIS FORM 10-QSB.

SAFE HARBOR REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

The information contained in Item 2 contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Actual results may materially differ from those projected in the forward-looking statements as a result of certain risks and uncertainties set forth in this report. Although management believes that the assumptions made and expectations reflected in the forward-looking statements are reasonable, there is no assurance that the underlying assumptions will, in fact, prove to be correct or that actual results will not be different from expectations expressed in this report.

Introduction

PaperClip Software, Inc. ("PCLP"), a Delaware Corporation, was originally incorporated in New Jersey in October 1991 as PaperClip Imaging Software, Inc. and is the successor by merger as of March 1992. PCLP was engaged in the development and distribution of computer software for document management and transport of electronic document packages across the public Internet or a private intranet with interoperability, security and tracking capabilities.

American Sunrise International, Inc., a Delaware Corporation, was incorporated on May 30, 2006. Jilin Dongsheng Weiye Science & Technology Development Co., Ltd. ("DWST") was incorporated in the People's Republic of China (the "PRC" or "China") on August 16, 2002. On July 31, 2006, DWST signed an agreement with ASI, whereby ASI agreed to purchase all of the net assets of DWST for \$1,250,000. Due to this change of ownership, DWST became a wholly foreign owned entity. DWST received its business license indicating its status as a wholly foreign owned entity on August 3, 2006.

On November 6, 2006, the Company, ASI, all shareholders of ASI, and DWST entered into a Stock Purchase and Share Exchange Agreement in which the Company acquired all of the issued and outstanding capital stock of ASI. As a result of this "Reverse Merger" transaction, the Company anticipated effecting a spin-off of its software development business. As a result of the spin-off, shareholders of record prior to effectiveness of the Reverse Merger will receive shares in the software development subsidiary. As of September 30, 2007, the Company has not completed the spin-off process, but Paperclip has a registration statement on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission as of November 8, 2007.

When the spin-off transaction is effective, the Company will operate its business solely through DWST, its wholly-owned subsidiary which is engaged in the development and manufacture of nutritional supplements and personal care products domestically in China.

Since the "Reverse-Merger" was completed on November 6, 2006, the results of operations for the three months ended September 30, 2007 includes consolidated financial statement of both DWST and PCLP while the results of operations for September 30, 2006 only reflect the financial statements of DWST

Results of Operations for the Three Months Ended September 30, 2007 compared to the Three Months Ended September 30, 2006

Revenue

The Company generated \$8,384,011 in net sales for the three months ended September 30, 2007. The Company's Dongsheng subsidiary ("Dongsheng") accounted for \$7,916,401 while the Company's Paperclip software subsidiary ("Paperclip") accounted for \$467,610.

Dongsheng's net sales increased by \$27,172 or 0.34% as compared to the revenue of \$7,889,229 for the three months ended September 30, 2006. Net sales remained relatively unchanged as a result of concentration in the management and development of our 379 retail outlets which exclusively sold our products. This initiative is fully reflected in our lowered cost of goods sold compared to the same quarter last year.

Cost of Sales

The cost of sales was \$2,951,505 for the three months ended September 30, 2007. Dongsheng accounted for all of the cost of sales during the quarter. This reflects a \$294,030 or 9% decrease compared to the three months ended September 30, 2006. Dongsheng was able to lower its cost of goods sold by directing more sales through its 379 retail outlets which exclusively sells its products. Compared to other retail outlets which must be given additional discounts to carry and sell Dongsheng's products, Dongsheng is able to maintain lower cost of goods sold and generate higher gross margins through these stores.

Total Operating Expenses

Total operating expenses were \$536,246 for the three months ended September 30, 2007. Dongsheng accounted for \$201,260 while Paperclip accounted for \$334,986. Dongsheng's total expenses increased by \$124,194 or 161.1% as compared \$77,066 for the three months ended September 30, 2006. Dongsheng's selling expenses accounted for \$53,593 of total expenses while general and administrative expenses totaled \$147,667.

This increase in selling and general and administrative expenses is part of the Dongsheng's plan to strengthen its management and regulation of its retail outlets. By providing more training and education to the distributors, Dongsheng expects to add more value to its brand name with its distributors and their customers.

Net Income

Net income for the three months ended September 30, 2007 was \$22,643,816. Dongsheng accounted for \$22,543,773 in net income while Paperclip accounted for \$100,043 in net income. Dongsheng's net income increased primarily due to a one time tax benefit of \$19,392,018. Dongsheng, received an tax clearance notice from the Local Tax Bureau in China stating that as of September 23, 2007, all tax liabilities have been cleared. Therefore the Company does not owe any outstanding balance relating to income taxes and other tax liabilities. Since this tax clearance notice only forgave taxes accrued prior to September 23, 2007 which did not include income taxes for the third quarter of 2007. Therefore, Dongsheng accrued \$1,646,006 in income taxes payable for the three months period ended September 30, 2007. During the same period in 2006, Dongsheng accrued \$1,526,167 in taxes payable.

By normalizing net income for the three months ended September 30, 2007 to exclude the one time tax benefit, Dongsheng increased net income by \$128,318 or 2.7% to \$4,765,178 from \$4,636,860 for the three months ended September 30, 2006. The marginal increase in our net income reflects our increase in expenses related to additional training and education of our distributors. Dongsheng's net income remained steady despite the increase in expenses related to additional training and education of our distributors.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As of September 30, 2007, the Company had cash and cash equivalents of \$462,024, as compared to \$57,941 during the corresponding period last year.

The Company had net cash flows provided by operations of \$6,571,003 for the three month period ended September 30, 2007, as compared to net cash provided by operations of \$3,038,495 in the corresponding period last year. The change in net cash flows from operations in the current period was mainly from the \$222,162 decrease in advances to suppliers as compared to the \$2,945,341 increase in advances to suppliers during the corresponding period last year.

Cash flows used in investing activities was \$6,975,027 for the three months ended September 30, 2007 compared with a net cash provided used investing activities for the amount of \$3,062,416 for the same period ended September 30, 2006. The increase of cash used in investing activity was due to payments made related to new equipment purchases and investments in fixed assets.

The change in net cash flows used in financing activity was \$63,145 for the three months ended September 30, 2007 as a result of a payment of note payable compared to nil during the same period in 2006.

We do not foresee any event or uncertainty nor is there any evidence in consumer demand or confidence that would reflect any trend to impact our short-term or long-term liquidity. By selling products through retail outlets and also franchise bases, the Company limits the commitments it must make to suppliers related to the manufacture of its products. In short, the Company only manufactures products based upon fully paid existing orders or orders partially paid with deposits. Using this mechanism, the Company has limited the amount of inventory it keeps on hand. The Company funds its operations internally or through contributions by management as reflected in the additional paid incapital.

The construction of our production plants is financed internally through cash on hand and contributions by the management as reflected in additional paid in capital. We do not have any material external commitments for these capital expenditures.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not have off-balance sheet arrangements, financings, or other relationships with unconsolidated entities or other persons, also known as "special purpose entities" (SPEs).

Item 3. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, we conducted an evaluation of our disclosure controls and procedures, as such term is defined under Rule 13a-15(e) and Rule 15d-15(e) promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (Exchange Act), as of September 30, 2007. Based on this evaluation, our principal executive officer and principal financial officer have concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures are effective to ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in the reports we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized, and reported within the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange Commission's rules and forms and that our disclosure and controls are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in the reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, or persons performing similar functions, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Changes in Internal Controls

There were no changes (including corrective actions with regard to significant deficiencies or material weaknesses) in our internal controls over financial reporting that occurred during the fiscal quarter ended September 30, 2007 that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

PART II - OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings.

To the best of our knowledge, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries is a party to any pending or threatened legal proceedings.

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds.

None.

Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities.

None.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders.

None.

Item 5. Other Information.

None.

Item 6. Exhibits.

Exhibit No. Title of Document

- 31.1 Certification pursuant to Section 302 of Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2002
- 32.1 Certification pursuant to Section 906 of Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2002

5

SIGNATURES

In accordance with the requirements of the Exchange Act, the registrant caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, there unto duly authorized.

CHINA DONGSHENG INTERNATIONAL, INC.

Date: November 19, 2007 By: /s/Aidong Yu

AIDONG YU

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

6